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Council on Aging is designated by the state of Ohio to serve older adults and people with disabilities 
within a multi-county region. We are experts at helping people with complex medical and long-term 
care needs, offering a variety of services via publicly funded programs. Our mission: Enhance lives by 
assisting people to remain independent through a range of quality services. 

Date: October 1, 2021  
Addendum Number: One  
RFP Number: 006-21  
RFP Title: ESP Vendor Fiscal/Employer Agent Financial Management Service 

Questions & Answers 

Q1:  On the “AFFIDAVIT OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY”  the following appears “the party making the 
foregoing proposal or bid; affirms that the aforementioned business is either registered with the Ohio 
Secretary of State or has obtained a certificate of authority to conduct business in the State of Ohio.”  Is 
this a requirement that must be fulfilled in order to submit this proposal for review, or can an agency 
state in good faith that if awarded the contract they will immediately get registered or obtain the 
certificate of authority to do business in Ohio? 

A1:  This is a requirement to be awarded a contract. COA is willing to accept a statement of 
good faith that a bidder, if selected for a contract, will immediately register or obtain a certificate 
of authority to do business in the State of Ohio. The timeline for this RFP is accelerated and 
contracting will happen quickly. COA will need a bidder who is submitting a statement of good 
faith to ensure they would be able to complete the registration process prior to the start of the 
contract.   

Q2:  Is there anticipated program growth over the contract cycle? 

A2: Yes, we anticipate that there will be growth in this program. Over the past 7 months we have 
added on average 17.5 new participants per month.   

Q3:  Does the COA require face-to-face enrollment visits or are e-enrollments allowed? 

A3:  We would be open to e-enrollments, however at this point most of our employers prefer to fill 
out paper documents.   

http://www.help4seniors.org/


Page 2 of 4 

Q4:  What are the background check requirements? Are the costs for background checks part of 
the participant’s budget or included in the pmpm (per member per month) FMS fee?  

A4:  Bureau of Criminal Investigation and Identification (BCII) 

 BCI&I Background Report 
To obtain a criminal background report, contact the Ohio Attorney General’s office at 877-

224-0043 and ask for a location nearest you to request a criminal background report.  When 
completing the background report request, use REASON CODE: 173.27; 173.38; 173.381; 
3701.881; 5123.081; or 5123.169 ONLY.  

 FBI Background Report 
If an employee has lived outside Ohio at any time within the last 5 consecutive years, in 

addition to obtaining a criminal background report from the Bureau of Criminal Investigation and 
Identification (BCII) you are required to obtain an FBI background check.  Contact the Ohio 
Attorney General’s office at 877-224-0043 and ask for a location nearest you to request an FBI 
criminal background report.  

A bidder would need to include the cost of an employee background check in their proposed One-
time Start up payment fee for client enrollment.   

A BCII background check is only required for employees new to the contracted vendor. 

Q5:  If there are background check requirements, what is the fee? Also, is fingerprinting 
required? Lastly, what is the average time it takes for results to be determined.  

A5: There are background check requirements. Please see the response in A4 
above.  Approximate fees - State Background Check (Ohio Bureau of Investigation) - $32 
National Background Check (FBI) - $35 Fingerprinting  

Webchecks (scans of fingerprints) or manual ink fingerprinting is required to meet the background 
check requirements. Webchecks (scans of fingerprints) are preferred for background checks as 
this reduces the average turnaround time. 

Result time varies, but typically is within 30 days. 

Q6:  Is workers’ compensation insurance required? 

A6:  Yes.  

Q7:  Are there any employee/caregiver trainings required?  

A7:   It is up to the employer/program participant to determine any training that their employee 
may need.  
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Q8:  What is the current pmpm (per member per month) FMS fee?  
  
A8:  COA does not currently utilize a per member per month FMS fee for this service, so there is 
not a relevant comparison.  
  

  
Q9:  What is the average number of employees/caregivers per participant?  
  
A9:  Most clients only retain one employee at a time. At this time most are friends or relatives of 
the program participants, so while there is some change in employees it is not a 
frequent occurrence.  
  

 
Q10:  What is the average budget size, as well as the minimum and maximum budget sizes?  
  
A10:  There is no minimum or maximum. COA’s historical average has been 29 hours per 
month or a monthly budget of $442.    

  
 

Q11:  What is the timeframe for reimbursing for pass through claims including the claims related 
to the hourly services provided by employees of the participant (Medicaid recipient receiving the 
self-directed services)?  
  
A11:  The Elderly Services Program (ESP) is not a Medicaid funded program.   
Services provided in the current month are due into COA’s software one or around the 12th of 
the following month.  Any billing received into our system by the due date will be paid on the 
last business day of the month. A copy of the current ESP billing and payment schedule can be 
found on the COA website here - 
https://www.help4seniors.org/Downloads/providers/2021%20ESP_Title%20III_Title%20XX_Pay
ment%20Schedule.pdf.  

  
  
Q12:  Does the COA allow for invoicing for claims within the same month of services?  
  
A12:   Yes, but payment will not be issued until the last business day of the following month.  

  
  
Q13:  What is the frequency of submitting claims allowed by the COA?  
  
A13:  Claims can be submitted at any time once services have been delivered, but at minimum 
will need to be submitted by the ESP billing due date each month. COA pays claims monthly.  
  

   
Q14:  Does the vendor have to wait a required amount of time after the service is completed to 
submit for reimbursement of claims? If so, what is the amount of time?  
  

https://www.help4seniors.org/Downloads/providers/2021%20ESP_Title%20III_Title%20XX_Payment%20Schedule.pdf
https://www.help4seniors.org/Downloads/providers/2021%20ESP_Title%20III_Title%20XX_Payment%20Schedule.pdf
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A14:  Claims can be submitted at any time once services have been delivered, but at minimum 
will need to be submitted by the ESP billing due date each month. COA pays claims monthly.  
  

  
Q15:  What is the timeframe for reimbursing for provider related claims including the financial 
management per member/per month claim and the counseling services per member/ per month 
claims?  
  
A15:  For payment of CDC services, billing is due on the due date listed in the ESP billing and 
payment schedule referenced above in A11.   If billing is received after the assigned due date 
payment will be received in the following month.  
  

  
Q16:  What is the length of the authorization for services?  
  
A16:  Services are authorized for one year. On average clients remain enrolled in the levy 
program for about 3 years.  
  

  
Q17:  Does the COA allow providers to draw down funds related to authorized services?  
  
A17:  COA pays out authorized completed services monthly unless otherwise negotiated.   
  

  
Q18:  Does the COA require a physical location in Ohio or will a location that able to be used as 
needed be suffice?  
  
A18:  COA desires to partner with a VF/EA FMS Entity that is within the continental United 
States. The business must be registered with the Ohio Secretary of State or have obtained a 
certificate of authority to conduct business in the State of Ohio.  
  

  
Q19:  In the RFP solicitation, the Home52’s app is mentioned. Does the COA approve of the 
vendor using a EVV compliant app to track gps location in place of the Home 52 app?  
  
A19:  The Elderly Services Program does not require the use of EVV technology at this time. 
However, clients and aides may opt to engage in the home52 Home Health Aide 
App (HHAA), and those who do so will utilize the EVV technology within the 
home52 HHAA. COA and home52 will work towards the best resolution to share client relevant 
EVV data with the contracted VF/EA FMS Entity.    
  
COA and home52 will be engaging clients and aides in the HHAA project throughout the FI 
contract, so it is unknown at this time what percentage of clients and aides will utilize the HHAA. 
 

 


